
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 28, 2022   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: March 28, 2022 

Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
 Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 

 
Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment use 
the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record may 
be submitted to dporter@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

             
 
1. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Public Comment - (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
 

 

4. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of March 14, 2022 
C. Pg 6 /Approval of:  

 
Pg 19 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $213,997.45 

are included in Warrants noted above:  
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 12462 to 12495 -$71,241.76 (Included in A/P Warrant 57209) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 12496 to 12532 -$142,755.69 (Included in A/P Warrant 57235) 
 

 

5. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

6. New Business (First Reading) 
 

 

7. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 36 /Washington State Fair Contract 2022 – DC Stueve 

 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57203 to 57232 totaling $ 131,474.04 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57233 to 57254 totaling $ 195,645.36 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57069 to 57069 totaling $ (199.00) 

GRAND TOTAL $ 326,920.40 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:dporter@centralpiercefire.org


 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 28, 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

8. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 48 /Finance - FD Robacker 
 
 

B. Pg 55 /IT - ITD Scott-Ralston 
 
 

C. Pg 56 /Logistics - AC Stueve 
 
 

D. Pg 57 /Prevention & Education - AC Overby 
 
 

E. Pg 58 /DC Administration - DC Karns 
 

 

F. Pg 59 /Fire Chief - Chief Morrow 
 

9. Correspondence 
 

 

10. Commissioner Comments 
 
 

11. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.140 – collective bargaining. 
 
 

12. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   March 14, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
March 14, 2022 

 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom webinar at 5:00 p.m. Present were Chair Holm, Vice Chair 
Stringfellow, Commissioners Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Chief Morrow, Deputy Chief 
Karns, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs Juarez, Kent and Bouchard, and Executive Assistant 
Porter, recorder. Ex-Officio Door’s absence was excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chair Holm requested that Item #11, Executive Session, be removed from the agenda. 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve the 
agenda as amended. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  Ex-Officio Door 
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of February 28, 2022    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $5,280,576.87. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  
 

A. Board Meetings Moving Forward 
 
Chief Morrow reached out to legal counsel to confirm that in-person Board meetings are 
allowed if they include a remote participation option for the public. Commissioner Willis 
moved and Commissioner Mitchell seconded to move to hybrid in-person/virtual meetings 
beginning March 28, 2022. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57145 to 57176 totaling $ 4,961,214.11 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107611 to 107616 totaling $ 21,865.96 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57177 to 57202 totaling $ 297,496.80 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,280,576.87 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   March 14, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 
 

A. Finance/FD Robacker.  
 

B. Resources/HRD Washo - Bulk of division work continues to be recruitment and 
hiring. 
 

C. Training/AC Juarez – Had opportunity to visit the South King County Training 
Consortium facility. Plans are moving forward with Recruit Academy 22-3. A 
member of Nash Consultants will be visiting with crews ahead of upcoming 
leadership training.   
 

D. Field Operations/AC Kent. 
 

E. EMS/AC Bouchard – Expressed appreciation of HR division for recent paramedic 
school interview process. A record number of people applied. With help from 
Physician Advisor, Dr. Friedrick, CPFR was approved for a leave-at-home Narcan 
program.  

 
F. DC Operations/DC Stueve - Chief Morrow reported that he had the pleasure of 

joining the two deputy chiefs in meeting with Fair staff. DC Stueve will be providing 
a revised service contract to the Board better reflecting the long-standing 
partnership.  
 

G. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow – Also attended the training consortium visit with 
local partners. Impressive to see how training coordination and consistency have 
driven their operations. AC Juarez has agreed to stay another year and will lead a 
similar process. Chief Morrow appreciates his willingness to stay and noted that 
post-retirement benefits are still in place for AC Juarez. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
A. No correspondence. 

 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Commissioner Mitchell – Excited next meeting will be in person. 
 
Commissioner Willis – Glad to see Woody staying another year. Stopped by a house fire 
yesterday and was told by the on-scene fire marshal that the crews did an outstanding job. 
He thanked crews for a job well done – it was noticed.  
 
Commissioner Holm – Asked that Chief and Staff provide an overview at the next meeting 
on what is planned to get elections moving forward.  
 
 
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   March 14, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 03/28/2022 

Item Title:  Proposed Contract with Washington State Fair 2022 

Attachments:  Draft Contract 

Submitted by E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Motion: To approve and authorize Chief Morrow to execute the contract for Fire & EMS 

Services with the Washington State Fair for year 2022. 

As the WSF desires to expand services, staff has identified significant partnership value. 

The following images demonstrate our potential opportunities: 

Fig. 1 – First Aid Station 

Fig. 2 – Station 70 (from distance) 

Fig. 3 – Station 70 (up close) 

Fig. 4 – Vendor Installation (up close) 

  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
$50,000.00 Reduction in reimbursement for fire & EMS services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 

Fig. 1 -  

 

37



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 

Fig. 2 -  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 

 
Fig. 3 -  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 

Fig. 4 –  
 

 

40



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 1 of 7 

FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
 
 THIS CONTRACT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between Central Pierce 
Fire & Rescue, (hereinafter referred to as the “District”), and Western Washington Fair 
Association, a Washington corporation, d/b/a The Washington State Fair (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Fair”). 
 
RECITALS: 
 
1. The District is organized and equipped to provide fire protection services to 
improvements, facilities and lands within and outside its boundaries, as well as emergency 
medical services to persons present therein. 
 
2. The Fair owns real property and/or improvements located within the District, and 
the District is capable of serving "the Property", which herein shall mean the Washington 
State Fair Grounds.  The Fair operates events at the Property, which attract large numbers 
of visitors and therefore require special fire protection, first aid and EMS services at and 
near the Property. 
 
3. The Fair recognizes the benefit of fire protection, first aid and EMS services 
provided by the District and is willing to contract for such services with the District. 
 
4. The District is willing to provide such services, so long as the Fair remains willing 
to pay such fees for such services, pursuant to this Agreement or any successor agreement. 
 
5. The District or its predecessor, the City of Puyallup, and the Fair have operated for 
many years in accordance with the practices and understandings set forth herein, but wish 
to memorialize these practices and understandings in a formal contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:   
 

1. For annual, “Core Events” as outlined in EXHIBIT A, the District shall furnish 
fire protection, first aid and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) (hereinafter "the 
Services") to all lands, buildings, workers, citizens and equipment upon the 
Property at the level of service provided elsewhere in the District pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

2. The District shall provide Services at the annual, “Core Events” on days when the 
Fair is open to the public (referred to as “Operational Days”).  
 

3. The Fair shall provide the District with various elements of Trade Partnership as 
outlined in EXHIBIT B. 
 

4. The Fair will reimburse the District for expenses associated with providing Services 
at the Property as set forth in EXHIBIT C. 

 
 

41



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 2 of 7 

 
5. The annual reimbursement(s) shall be for the Services enumerated herein. In the 

event that the level of services shall change by mutual agreement, the parties shall 
re-negotiate the annual reimbursement schedule.  
 

6. The District's personnel assigned to the Property for such events will remain on or 
near the Property at all times during the Spring and Fall Fair except when providing 
Services under this Agreement. 
 

7. The Fair will maintain Fire Station #70 on the Property and the District will provide 
all necessary equipment to fulfill this contract.  The Fair and the District will 
collaborate and partner to pay for special equipment as necessary.   
 

8. Interim events not included in EXHIBIT A are not covered by this Agreement and 
shall be managed separately. 
 

9. Failure of the District to perform the Services as the result of an Act of God or other 
natural disaster, or exigent circumstances beyond the control of the District, shall 
not constitute cause for termination of this Agreement.  
 

10. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year from the date hereof.. 
Notwithstanding the above, this Agreement may be terminated by either party, by 
providing at least ninety (90) days' notice to the other party prior to the termination 
date. 
 

11. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no 
statement, promise, representation, inducement or agreement made by either party 
or its agents or employees that are not contained in this written agreement shall be 
valid, binding or enforceable. By signature below, the parties warrant that they have 
read and understood the agreement and agree to be bound by its terms.  This 
Agreement supersedes any and all past practices that may have been impliedly 
agreed to by the parties or their predecessors. 
 

12. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart, and may be executed by way of 
facsimile or electronic signature, and if so, shall be considered an original. 

 
12. This Agreement shall become effective upon the execution and delivery hereby of 

each of the parties hereto.  
 

13. Indemnity: Sponsor agrees to protect, indemnify and hold harmless Association 
against any and all liability, loss or expense arising from any and all claims, 
demands and causes of actions including but not limited to libel, unfair 
competition, unfair trade practices, infringement of trademarks, trade-names or 
patents, violation of rights of privacy and infringement of copyrights and 
proprietary rights resulting from Sponsor’s advertisements or promotions related 
to Fair.  Likewise, Association agrees to protect, indemnify and hold Sponsor 
harmless against any and all liability, loss or expense arising from any and all 
claims, demands and causes of actions including but not limited to libel, unfair 

42



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 3 of 7 

competition, unfair trade practices, infringement of trademarks, trade names or 
patents, violation of rights of privacy and infringement of copyrights and 
proprietary rights resulting from Association’s advertisements or promotions 
related to Fair. 
 

14. Default & Remedies: In the event of a default by either party under this 
Agreement, the non-defaulting party will have all remedies available to it at law 
or in equity, including right of termination, injunctive relief and the right to 
specific performance.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of this 
Agreement unless and until the other party has provided written notice to the 
defaulting party, specifying the default and (a) in case of a monetary default, the 
defaulting party fails to cure the default within twenty (20) days of notice, or fails 
to commence and diligently prosecute such cure to completion if such cure 
cannot, with reasonable diligence, be completed with such twenty-day (20) 
period. 
 

15. Limitation of Liability: In no event shall either party be liable to the other party, 
its employees, subcontractors, and/or agents, or any third party, for any indirect, 
incidental, special, consequential, punitive damages, or lost profits for any claim 
or demand of any nature or kind, arising out of or in connection with this 
agreement or the performance or breach thereof. 
 

16. Confidentiality: The parties shall keep confidential all provisions of this 
Agreement and (unless required by law or judicial process after making 
reasonable efforts to resist disclosure, including without limitation the 
requirements of any securities exchange), shall not disclose any of same to any 
third party (other than the parties’ respective advisors, accountants and attorneys) 
without first obtaining the prior written consent of the other party.  The provisions 
of this Section 20 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for 
any reason. 
 

17. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the internal laws of the State of Washington without regard to choice of law 
principles. 
 

18. Venue: The parties agree that any lawsuit and/or arbitration being brought to 
enforce this agreement shall take place in Pierce County, Washington. 
 

19. Attorney Fees: In the event of dispute or litigation arising out of performance or 
failure to perform any of the terms herein, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in amount awarded by court or arbitrator. 
 

20. Force Majeure: Neither party shall be liable in the event its failure to perform its 
obligations results from (i) compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulations or 
order of any court or government agency of competent jurisdiction; (ii) natural 
disasters, pandemic, weather, acts of God or other circumstances 

  

43



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 4 of 7 

 
CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE  WASHINGTON STATE FAIR 
 
             
Date       Date 
 
____________________________________           ______________________________         
Fire Chief                 Kent Hojem, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 5 of 7 

EXHIBIT A 
 

2022 Annual “Core Events” 
  

Event Estimated Operational Days 
Spring Fair April 14-16 & 21-24 
The Taste July 1-3 
Washington State Fair September 2-25 (closed Tuesdays & Wednesday the 7th) 
Oktoberfest Northwest October 7-9 
Holiday Magic December 1-4, 8-11 & 16-23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 6 of 7 

EXHIBIT B 
 

2022 Annual Trade Partnership 
 

Annual Site Recognition 
Consumer Engagement: 
 Usage of designated space at fire building or a mutually agreed upon location, depending 

on event. 
 
On-Site Recognition: 
 Official Fire and First Aid Provider 
 Opportunity to display apparatus onsite; at agreed upon location, depending on event 
 Opportunity to provide educational interaction with guests 
 Permanent, year-round signage added to fire building, produced and placed by The 

Fair:  
o Sign on pedestrian door to include updated crest only 
o Sign above pedestrian door containing safety message or slogan 
o Sign placed top center above rollup doors 

 Online and Social Media: 
o Featured in One (1) Social Media posting on each: Facebook & Instagram Story 
o Recognition on www.thefair.com 
o Recognition in the Gate Brochure or equivalent, distributed to each guest 

 
Spring Fair 

Sixty (60) One-Day Promotional Passes 
 

Washington State Fair 
Two Hundred Twenty-Five (225) One-Day Promotional Passes (twenty-five for Fire Chiefs’ 
Meeting & 200 general use). 
Eleven Season Parking Passes 
Twelve Parking Passes 
Access to Employee Parking with Shuttle Service 
Twenty-five (25) Fair Mugs (designated for Fire Chiefs’ Meeting) 
 

The Taste 
One-Day Promotional Passes – Mutually Agreeable 
 

Oktoberfest 
One-Day Promotional Passes – Mutually Agreeable 
 

Holiday Magic 
One-Day Promotional Passes – Mutually Agreeable 

 
 
 
 
 
 

46



FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
CPF&R/Washington State Fair  Page 7 of 7 

EXHIBIT C 
 

2022 Reimbursement Schedule 
 

Annual “Core Events” Reimbursement for Services $275,000.00
Subtract 2022 Annual Trade Partnership Value (EXHIBIT B) $50,000.00

  Total $225,000.00
   
Billing Schedule: 
Spring Fair Billed within thirty (30) days of 4/24/22 $75,000.00
   
The Taste Billed within thirty (30) days of 7/3/22 $6,250.00
  
Washington State Fair Billed within thirty (30) days of 9/25/22 $112,500.00
  
Oktoberfest Northwest Billed within thirty (30) days of 10/9/222 $6,250.00
  
Holiday Magic Billed within thirty (30) days of 12/23/22 $25,000.00
 2022 Total Billed $225,000.00
  

 

47



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: March 28, 2022  

Item Title: Finance Staff Report 

Attachments: SB 5565 

Submitted by: Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   

SUMMARY:     
 

1. SB 5565 Passed.  What this means: 
a. CPFR will be able to write our checks and not process through the County 
b. CPFR will be able to invest our funds with no fees, and receive interest directly rather 

than pass through the County 
i. State law still defines what we can invest in, same as it did with the County 

c. Saves us time reconciling to County Records 
d. Saves us audit fees for auditing our county reconciliations.  
e. Next Steps 

i. A resolution appointing the Finance Director treasurer will be coming to the 
Board. 

ii. A Resolution authorizing investment in the State Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) will be coming to the Board. 

1. In a time of climbing interest rates this will significantly benefit us 
allowing us to receive the daily investment rates rather than the month 
old average Pierce County uses. 

2. February Checkbook: 
a. Will come to the Board 4/11/2022. 
b. Waiting for the HRA reconciliation from Payroll.  

3. POSITIONS 
a. Welcome our new Support Specialist Melissa Fox!   
b. Procurement & Grant Coordinator (Name Change to Purchasing Analyst)  
i. Job description finalized, awaiting union and CPFR approval. 

48



������������	
��
�	������	�
�����
����
��������
������ �!"�#$##
���!� "
%����&'
( ���)
*+
���
%�' ��
��*"! "+
#,
#$##

-� �
.�

	 +�
$/01234156
78
691

15:61( ���)
*+
���
;&!��
� "<�
=,
#$##

-� �
>�

	 +�
$
?1:@10
78
691
A7B21
78
C1?012156:63D12

������������,
% " �
E ''����",
%�<"�� "+
&F
���
 %�' ��
 &F
 ���
 %� ��
 &F
G ���'��&',
)&
��"�*+
<�"��F+
�� �
���
 �� <��)
��

�����
����
����
 �
H ���)
*+
���
%�' ��
 ')
���
;&!��
&F
 ��H"���'� ��I��
 &'
 ���
 ) ���
��"�&'
���
F&"��J 
1K016:0L�HH"&I�) ����MN7D10570
78
691

6:61
78
O:2935P675 
1K016:0L
78

6:61

6:61
78
O:2935P675
49



����������	
��
�
��	������
���������
���
��	�����
���	�������� 	�
����
����
���	������
����
	���
��	����������
������	���	������
�� ���������� � !������� � !������� � !�	��������� " �# $%�&��%����%'�$(��)%�*%+&,*��-�%�./��)%�,���%�./���,)&�+�.�01 2345�65������������ � �	����"7"����#����1�	����	���	�������
��� ��	��	���������0� 8�9�&
����
�����
�����
�������
��
��	���������
�������
�����������: 	��!����
����	�
��
�;��
������!�	��������;��
��
�������
���
����	
���7 ������
����
�
���������	
���
�������<��	������=��������
���
�" ��<�����!�
��������
�
	>���	���	��������
��	�
����?���	�����<����� ������
����
�
��!�	���
�������
����
���
���<������
��
���;��;����������� )���<��!�������	������;��
��
�������
���
�������	
�����������
�	�������� ����
�!�
�������
��
��	����������	����
��������
�����������
����# ���
���
�������	
�����	���������
�
��������;��
��
�������
���
@���1 
	>���	���	��������
��
�	
�	�����;��������;��;��
�����	
�����
����
����� ����
��	���
�	������
�����������
��
�������
��
��	���������
�������
���� ���������
����	�
��
�;��
�������
������
���
�������	
����: 8�9�����=�	�����������������������	����
���
���
�������
�	���7 A� !   !   ����	���	����<����������
���;�������
�
������������
�<���" ��	����	������
�	
��=��������
����������
����;�������	<��
��>;��������� ������	���	���������	���	

����	��
���
��	���������
������
���
��,������

2BCDEB�FGHH�IIJIK	�����*�
���	
����L�� �����
��	��,������2MNM3�OP�QNRSTUVMOU JWMS�H3VTRXNMYZ3 [\[[�]3VYXNZ�23RRTOUF̂�,��	
����,������!�������!�*�<��_!�	���̀����
K����������a� a�������	������
�
���� �a� a��������������
�������

������)�����
�b�*��	��+�<������
�

;��� ,$������K*50



���������������		�
��������		��������
�
��������
������	������������ ������������������		����������������������������������������
��������� ���	�
���������������������������
���������������������������������� ���������������
�������������������������������	���������� �� !�"!��#$%�&���'�(�(������)*������(����)���������������������& ����������		�
�+' ,�����������������
������������
��������������������������������- ���������		���������������������������.������������������������������* ��		�
���������+�/�0�12
���������3�/�0�������������3�/�0�	���	�) ��
������������������4���������������3�/�0�������	���	��������������( ����3�����/&0��������������������������������������������������������� ������������������	�����5�2���	���������������������������
����������� ����������������
��
�����������������
������������������������������ ����������������	��6��
����������

�������������������
������������� ���	�
��
������
������		�����������
�������������������	�����������	��& ��	�����������������		����
	������������//������00�������������������' 
��
���������5�2���	��������������
����������������	���	���������������- ����������������������
������		����������		����
	�������������* //������00������������������������	���	�������������������5����������) �����������������������������	����������������	������������������( 
�����	�����	���������
������������������	����������������������� ���������
��
�����������2������		����	����������������7������2������ 
������		����������		����
	������������//������00�������������������� ��������������5������������������������
�������������������������������� �������//������00��������������������������������������������������& ��������������������������������������������������7
����	��������������' 	������������������	��������������
������������������
�����������- ����������
������		����������		����
	������������//������00������������* �������	���	���
�������������������������������	���	���
����������) ����������( �� !�8!��#$%�&���'�(&(������((�����'&��������������������������� ����������		�
�+�� /�0�12��
�����
�����������������������/�0�//���00��/�0������/�0��� �����������������������������������������		�
������������������������ �����������������������������������
������������������������������& ��������������������
��
��������������������������5���
�����������		��' �����������������������

���������������������������������������- ����������������������������������������������* 
��� 79�&&'&�:;51



���������	
���	
�
�����	������	�����	
�
������������
���
��
��� 
���
��	���
������������	
�
���������	��	���	����	��
�������
���	
�� ����������������������
����
��������	����	��
�	���
��	������	�������� ����	����
��
����
	���
������	
���
����	��	�����	����
��	���	
������ 
�������������������	
���	
�
�����	������	������

����
��������
��� �
��	����
�����������
��
���	��!��������������	
�	��������
��" �����
��
����	������	��������
��������	��������������������
���	
�����# �	
���	
�
�����	������	������
���	��!���������	��������
�������	��
��$ 
��������
��
���������
��������
�������������
����
���
�	�����
�������% 
��	�������
�����	�������������
��
������
��������
��&��������	�������' ���������������
����
�������������
��
���������
����������������
���� �����
��
����� ���������	
���	
�
�����	������	�����	
�
������������
���
��
���� 
���
��	���
������������	
����
������
����	���������
�
�����	��
����� �	��
���
���������
���������	���	��
�������
���	
���������������������� ��
����
����	��
����������������������	��������
������
�������
�����" ����������	������	��������
���	�
��	
�����
��������������	������	������# ���	����	���
�	���
��	������	�����������	����
��
����
	���
������	
��$ ��
����	��	�����	����
��	���	
�����
�������������������	
���	
�
�����% �	������	������

����
��������
����
��	����
�����������
��
���	��!���' ������������	
�	��������
�������
��
����	������	��������
��������	������ ����������������
���	
������	
���	
�
�����	������	������
���	��!������ �����	��������
�������	��
��
��������
��
���������
��������
������ ���������
����
���
�	�����
�������
��	�������
�����	�������������� �
��
������
��������
�����������������������
����
������������������ �
��
���������
����������������
�������
��
����" ����(����������������
���
���
��	������
����
�������	�������
���# �����	��������
������������)*+� ���"�'�'�������
����
��	����	�����$ ���������
	������
��	����	
��������������	���
��
�������������������% ���������
�
�����������	����
�����	
��������������������
��
������
����' ����������	���	�������
���	����
�������������
��
,	�����	
������� ����������	
���
�������������������������
����� � ���������	����������
�������
��
��	��
�������
��	����
��	���� �	����
�������
���������������������	�����
��	��
����������������������� 
�	�����������
��	����
��	���	���
������������������	���������
��� �
����������	���������������	����������
��������
������	���������������" �	�������	�����������
���	
������������������
�	����	
��	�������������# �����	���������
���
����
�������
�	�����	
����������
������������������$ 
	���
���
��������������������������	�����% ���� -.�  " �/052



�����������	�
���
������������
���������
���������������������� �����������������  �!�"���#�$���%�#�&�������������'����%�(�%�����)���%&�����������* �+��'�%����������$����,�))��$���)�����-���%�%)��%�#�.'�%��%��%����/ ��������$%�������)�����$��(�����(������"���&�������(�
  �!�0�$(���+�������%�)����&����%������#�������'����%1���%������
 )���������))��$���&(��'����%�(�$�����23  &!�4�����%�����#����������%����������5������5������5�����6 ��#%����� ���%�%��� ���� ��)��������� ��� ��������(� ��� �����)�%���� �'����%�(�)'�)���������)������������'����%�(7��%�$��������2��  �!�8���)��#%���5�#�����5���������������%&'�%��������'����������� �%����'))��������)'�)���������)��#�������������'����%�(2��  �!�9��%���������'�%������)��#����������+��'�%�������%����* )������%�����������#���(����$%���)��.��������)�����������%�$���������/ �������)'&�%���������'���(���:��)'&�%��%����%��%�#�2�
  �!�-�(��������$%��������������%������������������������5��
 %���'�%�#�)������%��������$%������������2�3  �!�;%��5�����#�5���������%�������)��(���2�����6  #!�4+���%���)����������)��������'�%����������&�����������%������ ��������(��������(��'������)'�)����5��'���%���5�����)��.�������������� �'����%�(�%��������������%���  "%����
����	!!���%���%����%����������� �����%���)������%���.'�%��%��%����%�����%����%���%��5�'������)��$%������ ������%���%��������#%������%���)������%������$%����'����%�(�)���5�����* %��������������%�����������'����%����%�%���%������)����%���������������/ �%���)������%���.'�%��%��%����%�����%����%���%����
  �!�8���'����%�(��%�������������<��5���5����%�����'�����$��'����
 ��������)�����%�#�������(����5��������'����%�(������%��&�%�#���������3 &(�)���%�%)��%�#�.'�%��%��%����������'�'���%$��(����������������6 <��5���5����%�����'�����$��'�������������(�����)�%����������������%����� ��������'����%�(5���(����%#�����&(������'�%��������������)������*� ��$%�#��+)��%�����%���%����%�������%�������������������������'�������*� �����'����%�(��='����������'����������)������������������)�����5�*� ���)���%&%�%�%��5������'�%�����5�����������&���'&.����������������** �����%��%�������)��$%����&(��������5�������'��(������'�����%�����#����*/ ������%����%���%�������������'��(��'�%�����%�����#��������%���%���*
 �%����%�����������'��������)����
���
���	������������))�%��&���*
 ����'����*3 )��/ =>�



�-053



���������	
��
	���������������
����������������
�����������
��	���� ����������� ���� !"����

���# $%�##&#�'(54



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 28th, 2022 

Item Title:  Information Technology Division Report 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: I.T. Director Scott-Ralston 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

1. IT Key Performance Indicators 
 

a. Resolved 311 Consortium-Wide Trouble Tickets and Requests 
b. Resolved 223 Consortium-Wide Helpdesk Calls 
c. 18 On-Station Support Visits 
d. Tier 1 Application Availability: 100.00% 
e. Network Availability: 100.00% 
f. 892 Active User Accounts  

 
 

2. Projects Completed 
 

a. MPS Mobile Responder Pilot Test 
b. Support Specialist Candidate Selection 
c. Technical Support Specialist Oral Board Interviews 

 
 

3. Major Projects Underway 
 

a. Continued UcaaS implementation (Mitel Phones) 
b. Planning for the Consortium-wide O365 - Exchange Upgrade 
c. Redundant Data Center  
d. Redundant Network Circuits 
e. Identify Network and Application Monitoring/Security software 
f. Intterra/South Sound 911 Data Connections 
g. Archived EF Recovery Data Migration  

 
 

55



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:    March 28th, 2022    

Item Title:     Logistics Update 

Attachments:      

Submitted by:    AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

  

 Apparatus – Final Inspections of our two KME Engines will be conducted on April 
4th-8th.    

 Fleet Maintenance – We’ve welcomed two new Mechanics.  Mitch and Adam.  

 Facilities – Station 60 has received new landscape beds.  Station 65 has had its 
original fencing replaced and will receive new landscape beds shortly. 

 Facilities – Finalizing dates for Roof Repair for Station 65 and RFP is currently 
out for completing Phase I of our asphalt project at Station 69. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
 

56



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: March 28th, 2022 

Item Title: Prevention and Education 

Attachments: None 

Submitted by: Guy Overby 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   

 
SUMMARY:     
 
1-Prevention and Education is ramping up for the Spring Fair next month. CGRO Shaw and Public 
Educator Thompson are putting together some great interactive ideas for those visiting Station 70 this 
year.  
 
2-With the stations opening back up we are almost ready to revive our monthly CPR classes. With the 
two-year hiatus, nearly all of our instructors had their teaching certifications expire. I would like to thank 
Rob Richardson for stepping up the plate and putting together a plan to have eight people recertified in 
the next couple of weeks.  
 
3-The 10-year yearbook is set to go to print and will be dispersed once we get the final product.  
 
 
 
 

57



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 28, 2022 

Item Title:  Deputy Chief/Administration Report 

Attachments:    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by: Russ Karns, Deputy Chief 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    
 
Continuing to work on station 66 land eval and purchase. 
 
Working on station 73 redesign along with 61 suitability and station location. 
 
AC Stueve, Lead Mechanic Reseck, new mechanic Mitch Gibbons and I will be heading to 
Pennsylvania on April 4th through the 7th for final inspection on our 2 rotational pumpers.  
 
Completed a mediation on station 72 dirt on 3/21/2022. No conclusion was reached as of the 
writing of this AIS. 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

58



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  March 28, 2022 

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:   2022 District Focus & Kidder Mathews Intent Letter 

Submitted by:  Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
2022 District Focus 
Executive Staff has spent considerable time working towards a plan to move the organization 
forward for two specific purposes. The first purpose of the plan is to enhance emergency 
response service levels within the District utilizing existing resources, and second, to more 
efficiently support the overall administrative needs of the District’s business. The attached 
document provides an overview of how the District intends to move forward in 2022 and 
beyond. 
 
Crisis Intervention Coordinator 
With the pending departure of Chaplain Glen Luebke, coupled with an increase in employee 
stress related to incident response, Staff needs to take steps to secure a new internal resource 
to support our people. Based upon the success noted from other Districts, Staff is looking to hire 
a Crisis Intervention Coordinator that would replace Chaplain Glen Luebke, provide direct 
services to our people, and coordinate additional Chaplain resources available to the District. 
While this position is not budgeted in 2022, funding for this position is identified within existing 
resources. Human Resources is working on the Job Description and market analysis to 
understand the total cost of the position. It is intended for this position to be secured via a 
personal services contract. 
 
IAFF Local 726 Uniformed Collective Bargaining Agreement 
IAFF Local 726 has ratified the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) covering January 2022 
through December 31, 2024. The Board of Fire Commissioners now needs to vote on the CBA 
to finalize the process, allowing Staff to implement the changes bargained. Before a vote by the 
Board of Fire Commissioners, the Board should consider an Executive Session to discuss the 
CBA.   
 
EMS and Fire Benefit Charge Ballot Measures - August 2, 2022 
I will provide a progress report at the meeting.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Varied. 

59



 

 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Fire Commissioners 

From: Dustin Morrow, Fire Chief 

Date: March 22, 2022 

Re: 2022 District Focus 

  

 

Executive Staff has worked purposefully to develop the following for consideration by 

the Board:  

With intention, we are going to move Central Pierce Fire & Rescue forward through 
three (3) partnership efforts: 
 
1. We will live the "top 5" to demonstrate our commitment to a single culture. 
 

• Drive the mission 

• Model our values 

• Manage your portion of the business 

• Care for our people 

• Care for yourself 
 
2. We will connect with our community, share our stories, and gain their support for our 

resource requests this August. 
 
3. We will execute well a plan that represents the District's responsible growth, which 

results in improved internal efficiencies and increased service to the community. 
 
The plan, as mentioned above in item #3, is based upon a pay as we go forecast along 
with several other financial assumptions, including the passage of our August Ballot 
Measures.  
 

60



 

 

Staff worked diligently to understand the constraints within the District and to approach 
possible solutions in a wide variety of ways, including the use of lease spaces where 
needed and repurposing existing facilities where possible.  
 
The plan supports the following: 
 

• Implementation of the 2022-2024 IAFF Local 726 CBA 

• Increased staffing 

• Additional Medic Units 

• Special Team Staffing 

• etc. 

• Administrative facility move- a lease space 

• Training facility expansion- a regional effort 

• Centralized Logistics- a purchase or lease space 

• District storage- repurposed building or inexpensive new construction 

• Station 66- new construction/additional deployment 

• Station 62- remodel/additional deployment 

• Station 73- new construction/existing deployment 

• Station 61A- new construction/existing deployment 

• Station 61B- new construction/additional deployment 
 
Staff believes the plan is responsible and consistent with current and expected needs 
and considers the Standard of Cover to support the program's deployment changes. 
 
While the execution of this plan starts in 2022, it should be understood that it will take 
multiple years to complete the project list and be based upon the pay as we go forecast.  
  
Finally, Staff intends to bring the remaining elements of the 2018 Strategic Plan to a 
close by the end of the third quarter of this year. At that time, a new Strategic Plan 
process will begin and guide additional change within the organization. 

61



62



63



64



Xref Z:\PROJECTS\21-017_ Washington Water Services Co\Contract Documents\00_BIM_CAD\01_Model\01_Revit\_Export\21-017 Washington Water Services Co_R20 - Floor Plan - Level 1- Option 2.dwg

RECEPTION
550 SF

EOS ROOM
749 SF

BREAK ROOM
795 SF
53 OCC

GARAGE
DOOR

OPEN
COLLABORATION
AREA

MULTI-PURPOSE
ROOM
985 SF
66 OCC

MEETING ROOM #1
285 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #3

180 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #4

200 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #5

230 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #6

250 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #8

170 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #7

200 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #10

190 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #9

195 SF

MEETING
ROOM #2

290 SF

FITNESS ROOM
740 SF

BUILDING
LOBBY

MEETING
ROOM #4

450 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #2

208 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #1

220 SF

FILE/ARCHIVE
ROOM
180 SF

STORAGE
ROOM
315 SF

OFFICE #2
140 SF

MEETING
ROOM #3

280 SF

OPEN COLLABORATION
AREA
420 SF

COFFEE
AREA

LOGO WALL &
HISTORICAL
MEMORABILIA

ELEVATOR
MACHINE

ROOM

BUILDING
LOBBY

BOARD ROOM
985 SF

66 OCC.

RECEPTION
OFFICE
130 SF

OPEN
CONFERENCE

150 SF

ADA
RESTROOM

80 SF

ADA
RESTROOM

80 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #13

175 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #14

175 SF

(6) 6X8 WORKSTATIONS
350 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #11

190 SF

OFFICE #3
140 SF

OFFICE #4
140 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #15

140 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #16

140 SF

 FURNITURE
STORAGE

80 SF
OFFICE #1

140 SF

WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

220 SF

MEN'S
RESTROOM

220 SF

ADA
SHOWER/RR #1

90 SF

ADA
RESTROOM

80 SF

COPY/PRINT
300 SF

QUIET/
PHONE

ROOM #2
90 SF

QUIET/
PHONE

ROOM #1
90 SF

PRIVATE
OFFICE #12

175 SF

SERVER
ROOM
100 SF

STORAGE

ADA
SHOWER/RR #2

90 SF

Xref Z:\PROJECTS\21-017_ Washington Water Services Co\Contract Documents\00_BIM_CAD\01_Model\01_Revit\_Export\21-017 Washington Water Services Co_R20 - Floor Plan - Level 1- Option 2.dwg

CLIENT

PROJECT

PROJECT LOCATION

STAMP

REVISION LIST

KEY PLAN

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION BY

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

©Marshall Design + Management, LLC 2022

DESIGNER

ISSUANCE

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

MARSHALL DESIGN + MANAGEMENT
12400 SE 38TH #50766
BELLEVUE, WA 98015

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE AND RESCUE
1015 39TH AVE SE, SUITE 120

PUYALLUP, WA 98374

PROJECT STAGE:
DATE: 03/10/2022

SPACE PLAN
ERE
MM

BENAROYA
183000 CASCADE AVE SOUTH, SUITE 220

SEATTLE, WA 98188

SPACE PLAN

SP-1.01 Scale:
SPACE PLAN SUITE 120 | 19,557 RSF

1/8" = 1'-0"

N

SOUTH HILL BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY CENTER
1015 39TH AVE SE

PUYALLUP, WA 98374

65


	1-2022-03-28 Board Agenda DRAFT
	4B - 2022-03-14 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	4C - 2022_04_04 Warrant Approval
	7B1 - AIS - Proposed 2022 WSF Contract
	7B2 - Proposed - 2022 WSF Services & Reimbursement Agreement
	8A1 - 2022-03-28_AIS_Finance Update
	8A2 - 2022-03-28_AIS_SB5565 bill as adopted
	8B - IT Division 3-28-22 Agenda Item Summary
	8C - AIS LOGISTICS
	8D - AIS - PE
	8F - AIS - DC Admin
	8G1 -  - FC AIS 3.28.2022
	8G2 - 2022 District Focus Summary
	8G3  - Kidder Mathews Intent Letter
	8G4 - Benaroya Concept Plan
	Sheets and Views
	OPT 2





